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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA 

Newport News Division 
 

JULIE GLENNON and THOMAS E. 
OVERBY, JR., individually and on behalf of 
all others similarly situated 
 
  Plaintiffs, 
 
 v. 
 
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, LLC, 
 
  Defendant. 

 
 
 
 
  
  
 Case No.:  

 
COLLECTIVE AND CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Named Plaintiffs Julie Glennon and Thomas E. Overby, Jr. (“Named Plaintiffs”), 

individually and on behalf of others similarly situated (collectively “Plaintiffs”), by and through 

their undersigned counsel of record, hereby sets forth this collective and class action against 

Defendant Anheuser-Busch, LLC (“Defendant”), and allege as follows: 

NATURE OF ACTION AND INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

1. This action arises out of Defendant’s systemic, company-wide policy of failing to 

pay its employees for all hours worked and for overtime hours worked at the appropriate overtime 

rate, in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq., the Virginia 

Minimum Wage Act (“VMWA”), Virginia Code §§ 40.1-28.8 et seq.; and the Virginia Wage 

Payment Act (“VWPA”), Virginia Code §§ 40.1-29 et seq. 

2. Plaintiffs consist of current and former operators, technicians, engineers, or similar 

positions, who work for Defendant in Virginia and are compensated on an hourly basis.  

Throughout the relevant period, Defendant has maintained a corporate policy of failing to 

compensate Plaintiffs for all mandatory pre- and/or post-shift work. In particular, Defendant 
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requires Plaintiffs to arrive to work prior to the scheduled start time of Plaintiffs’ shifts, in order 

to perform a litany of tasks necessary to perform Plaintiffs’ jobs, including preparatory work, 

maintenance work, cleaning work, and paperwork, among other tasks.  As for the end of Plaintiffs’ 

shift, Plaintiffs are required to perform cleaning work, and numerous other tasks to properly wind 

down Plaintiffs’ shifts. Plaintiffs are required to perform this work in order to be prepared to carry 

out their job responsibilities when they arrive at job sites.  This work was required to be completed 

by Defendants and the failure of Plaintiffs to perform this work could result in warnings, discipline, 

and ultimately, termination. 

3. Notably, Defendant only compensates Plaintiffs for their scheduled shifts and does 

not compensate Plaintiffs for the required pre- and/or post-shift work.  

4. Defendant, through its managers and agents, are aware that Plaintiffs are 

completing this pre and/or post-shift work and doing so without compensation.  Defendant suffers 

or permits, and in fact requires Plaintiffs to complete such pre- and/or post-shift work. 

5. Plaintiffs routinely work 40 hours or more per week, without accounting for pre- 

and/or post-shift work.  When pre- and/or post-shift work are included, even those Plaintiffs who 

are scheduled and paid for only 40 hours or less per week, actually work over 40 hours per week 

without being compensated for all of their time worked or compensated at the proper overtime rate 

for hours worked over 40 per week. 

6. Defendant’s practice of failing to compensate Plaintiffs for all pre and post-shift 

work violates Plaintiffs’ rights under the FLSA, VMWA, and VWPA. 

7. Plaintiffs bring this action for violations of the FLSA as a collective action, 

pursuant to Section 16(b) of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), on behalf of the following class in 

Virginia: 
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All individuals who were, are, or will be employed by Defendant in Virginia as 
operators, technicians, engineers, or other similar positions who were not 
compensated for all of their hours worked, including, but not limited to, above forty 
(40) per week, within three (3) years prior to the commencement of this action, 
through the date of judgment or final disposition in this action. 

 
8. Defendant is liable for its failure to pay Plaintiffs for all work performed. 

9. Plaintiffs who elect to participate in this FLSA collective action seek compensation 

for all pre and/or post-shift work performed for Defendant. Plaintiffs seek compensation at the 

appropriate overtime rate for all hours worked in excess of forty (40) per week, an equal amount 

of liquidated damages, prejudgment interest, and attorneys’ fees and costs, pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 

§ 216(b). 

10. Named Plaintiffs also bring this action, on their own behalf, and as representatives 

of similarly situated current, former, or future operators, technicians, engineers, or similar 

positions, employed by Defendant in Virginia, under the VMWA and VWPA.  Named Plaintiffs, 

who are Virginia residents, and who worked for Defendant in Virginia, assert that they and the 

putative class, who work or worked in Virginia for Defendant, are entitled to compensation for all 

pre- and/or post-shift work performed for Defendant, whether the work week totaled greater or 

fewer than forty (40) hours, compensation at the appropriate overtime rate for all hours worked in 

excess of forty (40) per week, an equal amount of liquidated damages, prejudgment interest, and 

attorneys’ fees and costs, pursuant to Virginia Code §§ 40.1-28.8, et seq., and 40.1-29 et seq. 

11. Plaintiffs seek class certification under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure for the following class of Defendants’ employees in Virginia: 

All individuals who were, are, or will be employed by Defendant in Virginia as 
operators, technicians, engineers, or other similar positions who were not 
compensated for all of their hours worked, including, but not limited to, above forty 
(40) per week, within three (3) years prior to the commencement of this action, 
through the date of judgment or final disposition in this action. 
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12. Named Plaintiffs brings this lawsuit seeking monetary relief against Defendant on 

behalf of themselves and all others similarly situated in Virginia to recover, among other things, 

unpaid wages and benefits, interest, attorneys’ fees, costs, expenses, and penalties pursuant to 

Virginia Code §§ 40.1-28.8 et seq., 40.1-29 et seq., and 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et. seq. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

13. Plaintiffs bring this collective and class action against Defendant for violations of 

Virginia Code §§ 40.1-28.8 et seq., 40.1-29 et seq., and 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et. seq.  

14. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 29 

U.S.C. § 1331 and 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).  

15. Additionally, this Court has supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 

over the pendent state law claims under the VMWA and VWPA because those state law claims 

arise out of the same nucleus of operative fact as the FLSA claims. 

16. This Court has jurisdiction over Defendant because, upon information and belief, 

it is a citizen of the United States, has sufficient minimum contacts in Virginia, or otherwise 

intentionally avail itself of the Virginia market so as to render the exercise of jurisdiction over it 

by the Federal and Virginia courts consistent with traditional notions of fair play and substantial 

justice. 

17. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because Defendant 

conducts business within the Eastern District of Virginia, and a substantial part of the events or 

omissions giving rise to these claims occurred in this District. 

COVERAGE 

18. At all relevant times, Defendant was an employer within the meaning of the FLSA, 

29 U.S.C. § 203(d), the VMWA, and the VWPA. 
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19. At all relevant times, Named Plaintiffs and all others similarly situated were 

employees engaged in commerce or in the production of goods for commerce within the meaning 

of 29 U.S.C. §§ 206, 207. 

20. At all times material to this action, Defendant was an enterprise engaged in 

commerce or the production of goods for commerce as defined by the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 203(s), 

203(r), in that said enterprise has had employees engaged in commerce or in the production of 

goods for commerce, or employees handling, selling, or otherwise working on goods or materials 

that have been moved in or produced for commerce by any person, and in that said enterprise has 

had and has an annual gross volume of sales made or business done of not less than $500,000. 

PARTIES 

21. Named Plaintiffs are residents of Virginia. Named Plaintiffs worked for Defendant 

in Virginia at its Williamsburg, Virginia brewery during the relevant time period.  

22. Named Plaintiffs are informed, believe, and allege, that Defendant, at all times 

hereinafter mentioned, was and is an employer as defined in and subject to the FLSA and Virginia 

Code §§ 40.1-28.9, whose employees were and are engaged throughout this district and the 

Commonwealth of Virginia. 

23. Defendant is a limited liability company organized under Missouri law, 

headquartered in Missouri, and has its principal place of business located at One Busch Place, St 

Louis, MO, 63118. According to its website, Defendant “embod[ies] the time-honored traditions 

of brewing great beer while constantly innovating to drive the industry forward.” 

24. Defendant is an enterprise engaged in commerce under the FLSA because material 

hereto it had an annual gross volume of sales of more than $500,000.00. 
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